
^^..tMt^
•I j i,WEU:OIVIE:TQ! F,

ST. CHARLES
GWBf/M TO'WHITEWffrHfrT

L :CJ- - s .-i.-'.GA. „ t" s :':-L^O'

The City Council of the City of St. Charles welcomes you to its Regular Meeting of Tuesday, July 19,
2016 at 6:00 p.m. at 830 Whi+ewater Avenue, City Council Chambers, St. Charles, Minnesota.

ITEM ACTION REQUESTED

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
July 19, 2016 Agenda
Meeting Minutes

-June 14,2016

July Payables
Notices and Communications (if applicable)
Reports of Boards and Committees:

7a. Administrator's Report, Nick Koverman
7b. Public Works Superintendent Report, Kyle Karger
7c. Chief of Police Report, Ken Frank
7d. Library Board Report, Dave Braun (TBD)
7e. Park Board, Orv Dahl

7f. School Board, David Kramer

8. Police Staffing Recommendation

9. Squad Car Replacement

10. Power Supply Contract Discussions

11. Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings

12. 2017 Budget Timeline

APPROVE
APPROVE

APPROVE
INFORMATION
INFORMATION

APPROVE

DISCUSS

DISCUSS

DISCUSS

APPROVE

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES: Members of the audience may address any item not on the
agenda. State Statute prohibits the City Council from discussing an item that is not on the agenda,
but the City Council does listen to your concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
ADJOURNMENT

*Attachment. Questions? Contact Nick Koverman at St. Charles City Hall at 932-3020 or by
email at nkoverman@stcharlesmn.org,



ST. CHARLES
P^,~X3..;;X^C.X^.3^;-.3^^

MEMORANDUM for the CITY COUNCIL of St Charles for

_Tuesday, July 19,2016_

8. Police Staff Recommendation. Police Chief Ken Frank will be present to provide a

recommendation from the interview committee. In addition, he will provide the Council

with an update on staffing levels and a planned response.

9. Squad Car Replacement. As one of the squad cars was substantially damaged during
the 4 of July event. Chief Frank will present a plan and recommendation to the Council

moving forward with replacement.

10. Power Supply Contract Discussions. As part of the Upper Midwest Municipal

Energy Group (UMMEG) discussions with Dairyland Power Cooperative, a long-term

contract discussion with the City's long-time wholesale power provider has been |

ongoing. An UMMEG steering group as led by Richard Heinemann, an attorney of

Boardman & dark, along with financial/energy advisor Gary Price, have been reviewing
various options for the UMMEG group. In addition to the Dairyland Power discussion, as |

a member ofDairyland Power, Tri-County has also contacted the City of St. Charles
about the possibility of serving as the wholesale provider as a member of Tri-County.

11. Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings. A memo from the League of Minnesota |

Cities is included in the packet that helps to outline new legislation that was passed
regarding Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings. Two articles are also included for

consideration. Council may have a discussion as to the direction of the legislation as

City's are provided with an "opt-out" measure for the law. A list serv discussion has also |

been taking place and I will relay the information to the Council.

12. 2017 Budget Timeline. The tentative 2017 budget timeline will be presented for |
consideration. !



MINUTES of the ST. CHARLES CITY COUNCIL
for Tuesday, June 14,2016 held at 6:00 p.m. at

830 Whitewater Avenue,
St. Charles, Minnesota

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Councihnen:

Mayor John Schaber
Dave Braun

Orv Dahl
Wayne Getz
David Kramer

STAFF PRESENT: Nick Koverman (City Administrator).

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: Cathy Groebner and Jill Veerkamp (St. Charles Press).

1. ESTABLISH QUORUM/CALL TO ORDER
Quorum was established with Mayor Schaber calling the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL of the AGENDA
Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
No discussion.

Motion carried.

4. IVIeeting Minutes
-May 10,2016
Motion to approve: Dave Braun
No discussion
Motion carried.

-May 24,2016
Motion to approve: Orv Dahl
No discussion.

Motion carried.

5. June Payables.

Motion to approve: David Kramer
No discussion.

Motion carried.

6. Notices and communications: None.

7. Reports of Boards and Committee:

Reports were given.

8. Resolution #14-2016. Donation from Ruth A. Jacobs Trust. The resolution that approved the receipt
of $22,419.94 for City Park was approved.
Motion to approve: Or v Dahl
No further discussion.
Motion carried.



9. Resolution #15-2016 Off-Site Gambling American Legion. Discussion of the annual permit to the
American Legion for a gambling permit for the Wmona County Fair was held. A motion was made to
approve the resolution as presented.

Motion to approve: Wayae Getz
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

10. Resolution #16-2016 Two-Day Intoxicating Liquor License-American Legion. Discussion of the
annual permit was briefly held. A motion to approve the license for the Fair was made.
Motion to approve: Dave Braun
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

11. Resolution #16-2016 Three-Day Intoxicating Liquor License-American Legion. Discussion of the
annual permit was briefly held. A motion to approve the license for the Fair was made.
Motion to approve: David Kramer
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

12. WHKS Professional Service Agreement-SRTS Application. Admia. Koverman presented the Safe
Routes To School Service Agreement for engineering done prior to the actual construction project. The
value of the service contract was $30,000. Mayor Schaber asked if anyone had any questions. Hearing none
he called for a motion to approve as presented.

Motion to approve: Orv Dahl
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

13. Commercial Rehab Request-#2-16. Admin. Koverman presented the two requests outlined within the

proposal. The first was from the Southeast Minnesota Rural Education & Resource Center for $5,000 for a
handicap accessible ramp for the new location. Koverman acknowledged that the project has changed from
the rear of the building to the front, but that they would only be approved for 50 percent of the project up to
$5,000 maximum. The second request was from Kathy Wendt of Fresh Click photography for $4,275.00
for installing a new overhang, awning, painting and sign. Both projects met the eligibility requu-ements by
the EDA and were approved. After no further discussion a motion was made to approve the request.

Motion to approve: Dave Braun

No further discussion.

Motion carried.

14. Promotional Video. Mayor Schaber highlighted the EDA discussion surrounding the production of a
4-part video series that would highlight and showcase various aspects of St. Charles. Areas like tourism,
school, the 1-90 business park, amenities, or other items could be featured. The proposed cost for four 30-

second videos was $850, however, Admin. Kovennan had spoken with the Chamber of Commerce who
would be wUlmg to partner for $200 to help benefit the businesses. All Council concurred that it was a
good idea and a motion was made to move forward.

Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

15. City Cleanup Review. Admm. Koverman reviewed the tire pickup and cleanup day by relaying the
number of total tires at 882 at a cost of $2,764.00 City cleanup day saw just over 64 tons collected which
was a 33 percent increase in tonnage compared to the previous year of 43 tons. The cost associated with the

cleanup was $9,285.29, as compared to $8,481.00 in 2015. It was relayed that while the cost wasn't as bad
as what was assumed the increased amount of tonnage, it was readily apparent that increased dumping of

material from residents beyond city limits was occumng. Staff met with the General Manager of Advanced
Disposal, David Meyer, and he expressed the concern for the growing amount of rubbish. He offered
several suggestions utilized in other communities they service with one being having a single drop off point



and thus far doing away with curbside pickup. Koverman relayed that he impressed that more education of
our residents also needed to be provided by Advanced Disposal as to what can be placed m the garbage on
a regular pickup day as much of the material seen could have been disposed of in that manner. The total
cost for cleanup day and tire pick up exceeded the budgeted amount of $11,500 and therefore changes will
need to be made for future cleanup events. Council expressed that they liked the idea of the single location
for pickup and being able to verify residency for items dropped off. Discussion was held as to the possible
location between the city shop and the fairgrounds and pros and cons of each piece were discussed. It was
also expressed if it could be figured out how to get service to residents who absolutely had no way of
getting material to the location could be figured out. It was agreed that discontinuing the curbside pickup
would be a necessary change to the service provided in order to fay and keep the service affordable.

16. Council Meeting Dates. Mayor Schaber expressed that he would not be in attendance at the June 28
meeting and would like tentative approval to cancel if no agenda was necessary. In addition, given the
closing times of the Envu-olastech fmancing, Admin. Koverman relayed that he would like to move the July
12th meeting to the 19th m order to allow for the necessary pieces to be taken care of at that time. The
Council agreed and a motion was made to tentatively cancel the 28 and move the 12 to the 19 meeting.
Motion to approve: Dave Braun
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES
None.

Motion to adjourn at 6:28 p.m.

Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
Motion declared carried.

John P. Schaber, Mayor

ATTEST

Nick Koverman, City Administrator



n-HfflSsHlSTT-n

ST. CHARLES
City Administrator's Report—June 2016

June 1—Met with David Meyer from Advanced Disposal to review the City Cleanup Day numbers and

process. Meyer will provide us with information to share with customers as far as better education on

items that may generally be put in the weekly garbage pickup. He also offered suggestions conducted in

other cities with respect to curb side cleanup.

June 3—Held two ribbon cuttings following the EDA meeting at the SE MN Resource Center and Simple

Resale.

June 7—Held UMMEG meeting to discuss ongoing negotiations with Dairyland over long-term contract.

Reviewed term sheet and revisions were suggested by steering committee.

June 8—Attended CGMC Labor meeting in Albert Lea.

June 9—Attended Active Living meeting in Winona to discuss continued programming.

June 14—Met with Brian Krambeer and other representatives from Tri-County Electric Cooperative to

review a potential partnership project as well as the possibility of developing a long-term relationship.

June 15-17—Attended the League of Minnesota Cities Conference.

June 21—Met with representatives from the Wells Fargo Investment team. They will be attending a

future meeting to provide an update on the city's investment portfolio as well as general market

analysis.

June 23—Met with Christian Holter of Rochester City Lines to review the services offered. RCL will be

expanding their services with two additional bus routes. In addition, he will be implementing additional

bus route changes to more efficiently operate the system.

June 27—Held a conference call with Richard Heinemann and Gary Price along with Supt. Karger to

review ongoing discussions with Tri-County Cooperative. Price will follow up with DPC representatives to

review how Rugby wind energy will be potentially transferred.

Met with Peter Schunemann to work on EDA promotional videos.



Public Works Report - June 2016

Utility locates; monthly substation and power plant reports; mbber goods sent in for

testing; assisted Ziegler Power with substation maintenance and testing of main

transformer, reclosures, voltage regulators and breakers; three days of testing

requirements from Public Utilities Commission and ran power plant for 8 hours to isolate

the main substation transformer

Replaced filters on engines at power plant; planted shrubs at City Hall and EMS building;

sprayed weeds in substation; checked area around fairgrounds for suspected closed valve;

installed new water main loop from Cabin Coffee to fairgrounds to help with fire

protection; water quality and part of this project done in 2015 but finished in 2016 due to

budgeting

De-energized three phase power to High School track for installation of new fiber optic

lines; bucket truck to Winona for equipment box repairs; meter disconnects and

reconnects; labeling electric equipment risers and reclosures on 4 Street underground

cabinets; temporary electric service to permanent on Northern Hills Trail

Changed out overhead transformer behind 806 St. Charles Ave.; installed temporary

power to 342 Northern Hills Drive; took out trees at fairgrounds for water main loop;

located property pins; repair traffic lights; watered City Hall & EMS building plants; trim

trees at 449 Church Ave; checked transformer sizing and fault current for Envirolastech

site on 190

Repaired signs at Post Office and 1 Street; changed out faded signs around town; graded

roads; repaired and painted doors at City Hall; pushed up leaf and brush piles; took total

patcher LP tanks to Rochester; ordered yearly supply of traffic paint for City and the

school's Safe Routes to School project; replaced sweeper brooms

Serviced City Utility fleet vehicles; checked air handlers at City Hall and replaced filters;

jet out pipe and catch basins; hauled broken sand pro to old shop; blacktop patches and

potholes; mowed City Park; repaired wiring on red flatbed trailer; hauled gravel and

leveled alley at 148 Church Ave.



City Hall finals; new battery installed in #702 pickup; changed oil and serviced paint

machine; water testing at Julie Carlson's house; street sweeping; cleaned sewer jetter

nozzles, repair ofBrookwood west drainage ditch; labeled new traffic cones; east storm

ditch repairs, weed whacking; tree removal before spraying

Water valve replacement on South Whitewater Ave ; new fair meter and low pressure

testing; cleaned back shop storage area; treated lift station; replaced check valve at

swimming pool; water samples; checked on citywide leak detection survey - two leaks

were found, both on fairgrounds hydrants

Attention: The City Water Department had three valves leaking on Whitewater Ave. and

this has happened in the past due to bolts rusting off. Winona, Eyota and Plainview have

all had this problem with their valves installed in the mid to late 1980's. We got DOT

permits and replaced five valves between 7 Street and 13th Street along Whitewater Ave.

At this time all water leaks for the City and the fairgrounds have been repaired and we

are waiting for the road patching crew.

Sincerely,

Kyle Karger
Public Works Superintendent



City of St. Charles Police Department
Chief-Ken Frank #601

830 Whitewater Avenue

St. Charles, MN 55972

(507) 932-3020 • (507) 932-5301 FAX

July 2016 Council Report

June 29th held Responsible Beverage Server Training here at City Hall. Training

was available to local on/off sale liquor establishments and involved this

department providing information to those that own establishments and/or ser^e

alcoholic beverages about criminal laws, civil liabilities and how to spot fraudulent

ID'S. Officer time for this training and the upcoming compliance checks has been

reimbursed.

Squad 261 OA was involved in a not-at-fault accident July 4 on Hwy 14 at the

intersection with the High School. The State Patrol handled the accident

investigation. The vehicle was declared a total loss and insurance settlement of

plus removal of equipment and replacement on any damaged equipment along

with reinstallation of new equipment including graphics.

National Night Out - Police Department Open House scheduled for Tuesday

August 2nd

Respectfully Submitted,

Chief Ken Frank

"Proud to Serve"



7/15/2016

.^s^f^SsSai^.E^^^^..rrr 'm

ST. CHARLES
^_....... ..^......... ^... ^ —_.._^!._-.._ Jii.—....._^.._._.._^.._.-....^..- ...-..-.^.

Page 1

Request for City Council Action

Date: July 15, 2016 Requested Council Date: July 19, 2016

Originating Department: Police

Council Action Requested: Approval of Promotion of Officer Jose Pelaez to position of
Sergeant and filling the current full-time vacancy within the department

Background Information: 2 internal candidates were interviewed for the Sergeant

position on July 6 by an interview panel consisting of myself Chief Frank, City
Administrator Nick Koverman, City Council person Wayne Goetz, Winona County Lead

Deputy JeffMueller and High School Principal Ben Bernard.

The unanimous recommendation was to recommend the promotion of Officer Pelaez.

Officer Pelaez's resume includes a Bachelor of Science - Criminal Justice degree from

Kaplan University, being employed as a police officer with the City of St Charles since
2008, promoted to fall-time in 2013. 5+ years full-time employment as a Detention

Deputy with Winona County and in 2010 he began a military career with the United
States Air Force currently ranked as a Staff Sergeant.

Skills and abilities Officer Pelaez would bring to the sergeant position include bi-lingual,
a certified Drug Recognition Expert, Emergency Medical Responder and has

demonstrated a work history of reliability, he follows through with responsibilities and
assignments and is very capable in all aspects of common law enforcement practices.

xzzzss.

ST.CMRJ.ES



7/15/2016 Page 1

ST. CHARLES
Request for City Council Action

Date: July 15, 2016 Requested Council Date: July 19, 2016

Originating Department: Police

Council Action Requested: Review and approve bid for 5 year lease on 3 2017 Ford
Interceptor Utility Squad Cars. All squads were scheduled for replacement this year and
2609 was actially scheduled last year.

Background Information:

Squad 2610A a 2010 Cheyy Impala with about 77,000 miles (put in service June 2010)
was involved in a not at-fault motor vehicle accident July 4. Of the three remaining

squads, squad 2609 was put in service in May of 2009 and has 123,000 + miles on it.
Squad 2610B was put in service in June of 2010 and has 92,000 +. Both units have

maintenance issues. The remaining squad is a 2013 Ford Interceptor AWD utility in
service October of 2013 with 40,000 miles.

We are in a very precarious situation with squads and doing our best to keep them

running with minimal maintenance cost. At this time we only have 1 reliable unit.

I received the delivered State Bid price on 3 2017 Ford Interceptor AWD Utility vehicles
and bid with 2 different locations on equipment installation. Low bid on Equipment
installation was a company (EATI) out of the metro area whom I also noted was the low

bid on equipment installation for the Sheriffs 2016 squad purchases. Whitewater
Wireless no longer installs equipment in law enforcement vehicles.

Maintenance costs for the police squads:

2014 $6940, 2015 $8819, 2016 YTD $6621

r-ssaaa;

ST.cmKiEs
^^^S^.-jL^^t^S^I^I.



7/15/2016

^^as€smssT^^m m
ST. CHARLES

Page 2

Request for City Council Action

These costs include tires & rotation, regularly scheduled service and batteries. On the

2013 Interceptor there have no expenses except for routine maintenance, including 1 set

of tires and a battery.

The new Interceptors would come with 3 year 36000 mile bumper to bumper warranty

plus a 5 year 100,000 mile power train warranty.

I will forward final bid numbers and a proposal prior to the July 19 council meeting along
with amount of proposes insurance settlement for squad 2610A.

rl!aaa&u»

.1 m

:S'I'Ca^RLES



.A
LEAGUE OF
"MINNESOTA

QTIES

CONNECTING & INNOVATING
SINCE 1913

Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings of 2016
Allowing Temporary Structures - What it means for Cities

Introduction:
On May 12, 2016, Governor Dayton signed, into law, a bill creating a new process for landowners
to place mobile residential dwellings on their property to serve as a temporary family health care
dwelling.! Community desire to provide transitional housing for those with mental or physical
impairments and the increased need for short term care for aging family members served as the
catalysts behind the legislature taking on this initiative. The resulting legislation sets forth a short
term care alternative for a "mentally or physically impaired person", by allowing them to stay in a
"temporary dwelling" on a relative's or caregiver's property.2

Where can I read the new law?
Until the state statutes are revised to include bills passed this session, cities can find this new bill at
2016 Laws, Chapter 111.

Does the law require cities to follow and implement the new temporary family
health care dwelling law?
Yes, unless a city opts out of the new law or currently allows temporary family health care
dwellings as a permitted use.

Considerations for cities regarding the opt-out?
These new temporary dwellings address an emerging community need to provide more convenient
temporary care. Cities may want to consider the below when analyzing whether or not to opt out:

• The new law alters a city's level of zoning authority for these types of structures.

• While the city's zoning ordinances for accessories or recreational vehicles do not apply,
these structures still must comply with setback requirements.

• A city's zoning and other ordinances, other than its accessory use or recreational vehicle

ordinances, still apply to these structures. Because conflicts may arise between the statute
and a city's local ordinances, cities should confer with their city attorneys to analyze their
current ordinances in light of the new law.

• Although not necessarily a legal issue for the city, it seems worth mentioning that the
permit process does not have the individual with the physical or mental impairment or that

'2016 Laws. Chapter 111.

2 Some cities asked if other states have adopted this type of law. The only states that have a somewhat similar statute

at the time of publication of this FAQ are North Carolina and Virginia. It is worth noting that some states have adopted
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) statutes to allow granny flats, however, these ADU statutes differ from Minnesota's
Temporary Health Care Dwelling law.

145 UN1VERS1TYAVE. WEST
ST. PAUL, MN 55103-2044

PHONE: (631) 281-1200
TOLL FRBE: (800) 925-1122

FAX: (651) 281-1299
WEB: WWW.LMC.ORG



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings
June 9, 2016
Page 2

individual's power of attorney sign the permit application or a consent to release his or her

data.

• The application's data requirements may result in the city possessing and maintaining
nonpublic data governed by the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.

• The new law sets forth a permitting system for both cities and counties3. Cities should
consider whether there is an interplay between these two statutes.

Do cities need to do anything to have the new law apply in their city?
No, the law goes into effect September 1, 2016 and automatically applies to all cities that do not
opt out or don't already allow temporary family health care dwellings as a permitted use under
their local ordinances. By September 1, 2016, however, cities will need to be prepared to accept
applications, must have determined a permit fee amount (if the city wants to have an amount
different than the law's default amount), and must be ready to process the permits in accordance
with the short timeline required by the law.

What if a city already allows a temporary family health care dwelling as a
permitted use?
If the city already has designated temporary family health care dwellings as a permitted use, then
the law does not apply and the city follows its own ordinance. The city should consult its city
attorney for any uncertainty about whether stmchires currently permitted under existing ordinances
qualify as temporary family health care dwellings.

What process should the city follow if it chooses to opt out of this statute?
Cities that wish to opt out of this law must pass an ordinance to do so. The statite does not provide
clear guidance on how to treat this opt-out ordinance. However, since the new law adds section

462.3593 to the land use planning act (Minn. Stat. ch. 462), arguably, it may represent the adoption
or an amendment of a zoning ordinance, triggering the requirements of Mum. Stat. § 462.357,

subd. 2-4, including a public hearing with 10-day published notice. Therefore, cities may want to
err on the side of caution and treat the opt-out ordinance as a zoning provision.5

Does the League have a model ordinance for opting out of this program?
Yes. Link to opt out ordinance here: Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings Ordinance

Can cities partially opt out of the temporary family health care dwelling law?

3 See Minn. Stat. §394.307

4 Cities do have flexibility as to amounts of the permit fee. The law sets, as a default, a fee of $100 for the initial
permit with a $50 renewal fee, but authorizes a city to provide otherwise by ordinance.

5 For smaller communities without zoning at all, those cities still need to adopt an opt-out ordinance. In those

instances, it seems less likely that the opt-out ordinance would equate to zoning. Because of the ambiguity of the

statute, cities should consult their city attorneys on how best to approach adoption of the opt-out ordinance for their

communities.



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings
June 9, 2016

Page 3

Not likely. The opt-out language of the statute allows a city, by ordinance, to opt out of the
requirements of the law but makes no reference to opting out of parts of the law. If a city wanted a
program different from the one specified in statute, the most conservative approach would be to
opt out of the statute, then adopt an ordinance structured in the manner best suited to the city.
Since the law does not explicitly provide for a partial opt out, cites wanting to just partially opt out
from the statute should consult their city attorney,

Can a city adopt pieces of this program or change the requirements listed in the
statute?
Similar to the answer about partially opting out, the law does not specifically authorize a city to
alter the statutory requirements or adopt only just pieces of the statute. Several cities have asked if
they could add additional criteria, like regulating placement on driveways, specific lot size limits,
or anchoring requirements. As mentioned above, if a city wants a program different from the one
specified in the statute, the most conservative approach would involve opting out of the statute in
its entirety and then adopting an ordinance structured in the manner best suited to the city. Again,
a city should consult its city attorney when considering adopting an altered version of the state
law.

What is required in an application for a temporary family health care dwelling
permit?
The mandatory application requests very specific information including, but not limited to:6

• Name, address, and telephone number of the property owner, the resident of the property

(if different than the owner), and the primary care giver;

• Name of the mentally or physically impaired person;

• Proof of care from a provider network, including respite care, primary care or remote

monitoring;

• Written certification signed by a Minnesota licensed physician, physician assistant or
advanced practice registered nurse that the individual with the mental or physical
impairment needs assistance performing two or more "instrumental activities of daily
life;"7

• An executed contract for septic sewer management or other proof of adequate septic sewer

management;

• An affidavit that the applicant provided notice to adjacent property owners and residents;

• A general site map showing the location of the temporary dwelling and the other structures
on the lot; and

• Compliance with setbacks and maximum floor area requirements of primary structure.

6 NewMinn. Stat. § 462.3593, subd. 3 sets forth all the application criteria.
7 This is a term defined in law at Minn. Stat. § 256B.0659, subd, l(i) as "activities to include meal planning and
preparation; basic assistance with paying bills; shopping for food, clothing, and other essential items; performing
household tasks integral to the personal care assistance services; communication by telephone and other media; and

traveling, including to medical appointments and to participate in the community."



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings
June 9, 2016

Page 4

The law requires all of the following to sign the application: the primary caregiver, the owner of
the property (on which the temporary dwelling will be located) and the resident of the property (if
not the same as the property owner). However, neither the physically disabled or mentally
impaired individual nor his or her power of attorney signs the application.

Who can host a temporary family health care dwelling?
Placement of a temporary family health care dwelling can only be on the property where a
"caregiver" or "relative" resides. The statute defines caregiver as "an individual, 18 years of age

or older, who: (1) provides care for a mentally or physically impaired person; and (2) is a relative,
legal guardian, or health care agent of the mentally or physically impaired person for whom the
individual is caring." The definition of "relative" includes "a spouse, parent, grandparent, child,
grandchild, sibling, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of the mentally or physically impaired person.
Relative also includes half, step and in-law relationships."

Is this program just for the elderly?
No. The legislature did not include an age requirement for the mentally or physically impaired
dweller.

Who can live in a temporary family health care dwelling and for how long?
The permit for a temporary health care dwelling must name the person eligible to reside in the unit.
The law requires the person residing in the dwelling to qualify as "mentally or physically
impaired," defined as "a person who is a resident of this state and who requires assistance with two
or more instrumental activities of daily living as certified by a physician, a physician assistant, or
an advanced practice registered nurse, licenses to practice in this state." The law specifically
limits the time frame for these temporary dwellings permits to 6 months, with a one-time 6 month
renewal option. Further, there can be only one dwelling per lot and only one dweller who resides
within the temporary dwelling

What structures qualify as temporary family health care dwellings under the new
law?
The specific structural requirements set forth in the law preclude using pop up campers on the
driveway or the "granny flat" with its own foundation as a temporary structure. Qualifying
temporary structures must:

• Primarily be pre-assembled;

• Cannot exceed 300 gross square feet;

• Cannot attach to a permanent foundation;

• IVTust be universally designed and meet state accessibility standards;

8 The law expressly exempts a temporary family health care dwelling from being considered "housing with services

establishment", which, in turn, results in the 55 or older age restriction set forth for "housing with services

establishment" not applying.



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings
June 9,2016
Page 5

• Must provide access to water and electrical utilities (by connecting to principal dwelling or
by other comparable means9);

• Must have compatible standard residential construction exterior materials;

• Must have minimum insulation of R-15;

• Must be portable (as defined by statute);

• Must comply with Minnesota Rules chapter 1360 (prefabricated buildings) or 1361
(industrialized/modular buildings), "and contain an Industrialized Buildings Commission
seal and data plate or to American National Standards Institute Code 119.2' °; and

• Must contain a backflow check valve.'}

Does the State Building Code apply to the construction of a temporary family
health care dwelling?
Mostly, no. These structures must meet accessibility standards (which are in the State Building
Code). The primary types of dwellings proposed fall within the classification of recreational
vehicles, to which the State Building Code does not apply. Two other options exist, however, for
these types of dwellings. If these structures represent a pre-fabricated home, the federal building
code requirements for manufactured homes apply (as stated in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 1360). If
these structures are modular homes, on the other hand, they must be constructed consistent with

the State Building Code (as stated in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 1361).

What health, safety and welfare requirements does this new law include?
Aside from the construction requirements of the unit, the temporary family health care dwelling
must be located in an area on the property where "septic services and emergency vehicles can gain

access to the temporary family health care dwelling in a safe and timely manner."

What local ordinances and zoning apply to a temporary health care dwelling?
The new law states that ordinances related to accessory uses and recreational vehicle storage and

parking do not apply to these temporary family health care dwellings. However, unless otherwise
provided, setbacks and other local ordinances, charter provisions, and applicable state laws still
apply. Because conflicts may arise between the statute and one or more of the city's other local
ordinances, cities should confer with their city attorneys to analyze their current ordinances in light
of the new law.

What permit process should cities follow for these permits?
The law creates a new type of expedited permit process. The permit approval process found in
Minn. Stat. § 15.99 generally applies; however, the new law shortens the time frame for which the
local governmental unit has to make a decision on granting the permit. Due to the time sensitive

9 The Legislature did not provide guidance on what represents "other comparable means".

10 ANSI Code 119.2 has been superseded by NFPA 1192. For more information, the American National Standards
Institute website is located at https://www.ansi.org/.

" New Minn. Stat. § 462.3593, subd. 2 sets forth all the structure criteria.



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings
June 9, 2016

Page 6

nature of issuing a temporary dwelling permit, the city has only 15 days (rather than 60 days) (no
extension is allowed) to either issue or deny a permit. The new law waives the public hearing
requirement and allows the clock to restart if a city deems an application incomplete. If a city
deems an application incomplete, the city must provide the applicant written notice, within five
business days of receipt of the application, telling the requester what information is missing. For
those councils that regularly meet only once a month, the law provides for a 30-day decision.

Can cities collect fees for these permits?
Cities have flexibility as to amounts of the permit fee. The law sets the fee at $100 for the initial
permit with a $50 renewal fee, unless a city provides otherwise by ordinance

Can cities inspect, enforce and ultimately revoke these permits?
Yes, but only if the permit holder violates the requirements of the law. The statute allows for the
city to require the permit holder to provide evidence of compliance and also authorizes the city to
inspect the temporary dwelling at times convenient to the caregiver to determine compliance. The
permit holder then has sixty (60) days from the date of revocation to remove the temporary family
health care dwelling. The law does not address appeals of a revocation.

How should cities handle data it acquires from these permits?
The application data may result in the city possessing and maintaining nonpublic data governed by
the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. To minimize collection of protected heath data or

other nonpublic data, the city could, for example, request that the required certification of need
simply state "that the person who will reside in the temporary family health care dwelling needs
assistance with two or more instrumental activities of daily living", without including in that
certification data or information about the specific reasons for the assistance, the types of
assistance, the medical conditions or the treatment plans of the person with the mental illness or
physical disability. Because of the complexities surrounding nonpublic data, cities should consult

their city attorneys when drafting a permit application.

Should the city consult its city attorney?
Yes. As with any new law, to determine the potential impact on cities, the League recommends
consulting with your city attorney.

Where can cities get additional information or ask other questions.
For more information, contact Staff Attorney Pamela Whitmore at pwhitmore(%lmc. org or LMC
General Counsel Tom Grundhoefer at tgrundho(%lmc.org. If you prefer callmg, you can reach
Pamela at 651.281.1224 or Tom at 651.281.1266.



Twin Cities suburbs opt to go their own. way on tiny 'drop homes' - StarTribune.com Page 1 of 2

Suburbs opt to go their own way on
state s drop home law
Facing a new state requirement to aUow tmy trailers on residential

lots, many cities are saying no.

By Erin Adler (http://www.startribune.com/erln-adler/195633361/) and Emma Nalson i
(http://www.startribune.com/emma-nelson/2618002U/) StarTrlbune staff writers i

JULY B, ZOI6 - 8:41AM

Metro suburbs are bypassing a new state law that would require them to allow tiny,

portable houses on residential properties, saying the state mandate doesn't work for

them.

The statute is intended to provide access to temporary "drop homes" for people —

mostly older adults —with health care needs that require them to be close to a

caregiver.

But worries about resident complaints, conflicts with local zoning ordinances and

timing concerns have spurred cities to opt out of the law. Some say they already have

the resources they need to meet the needs of aging residents, while others want to pass

their own laws allowing temporary structures taUored to their city.

The League of Minnesota Cities fought for an opt-out provision in the statute so local

governments could still have control over their own zoning.

Bill sponsor Rep. Roz Peterson, R-LakeviUe, struggled to find a place for her elderly

father to live when he got sick two years ago. It's disappointing that cities are opting out,

she said, but she acknowledged that the law isn't one-size-fits-all.

"It's always difficult to accept change and innovation," Peterson said. "This won't solve

everybody's problem —this is one tool in the toolbox, so to speak."

Drop homes, sometimes called granny pods, are trailers under 300 square feet that are

biUed as an affordable and temporary alternative to sending sick, injured or elderly

family members to a nursing home.

The new law was based on similar, but less restrictive, laws in North Carolina and

Virgmia.

In Minnesota, the law allows homeowners to have a drop home on their property for sue

months by paying for a $100 permit, unless their city has a specific ordinance against the

homes.

The Bumsville City Council voted unanimously on June 21 to opt out. Drop homes don't

meet city codes, said Mayor Elizabeth Kautz, and the city already has temporary

housing options.

Those options include spare bedrooms, apartments, assisted living faculties, short-term

health care facilities, hotels and group homes, according to a meeting agenda report.

"It's not that we don't have it," Kautz said. "We want control of what happens here in

Bumsville."

Some cities v^ant to allow accessory dwelling units but are choosing to do so on their

own terms.

The Crystal City Council will likely vote to opt out at its next meeting, said Council

Member JeffKolb. The decision stems largely from the nature of residential properties in

Crystal, many of which may be too small to qualify for drop homes under the statute, he

said.

The City Council will try to pass an ordinance in the future that allows for accessory

units that are better tailored to the city, Kolb said.

"There was a concern that it would be perceived that by opting out, we were saying we

don't want this kind of thing around here, that it was kmd ofacold-hearted decision," he

said. (The reality is it's not that at all."

In LakevUle, the City Council agreed to opt out last week but also sent the issue to city

staff for further review.

(http://stmedia.startribune.com/images/1467684122_08+678634+02
ELIZABETH FLORES. STAR TRIBUNE

John Louiselle, left, and Jesse Lammi are a pair

of young New Brighton entrepreneurs that

have started NextDoor Housing, a company

http://www.startribune.com/suburbs-opt-to-go-their-own-way-on-state-s-drop-home-law/38... 7/5/2016



Twin Cities suburbs opt to go their own way on tiny 'drop homes' - StarTribune.com Page 2 of 2

There were multiple concerns, said Mayor Matt Little, including aesthetics, property

values and the difficulty city staff would face in having to make judgments about

residents' illnesses.

"Every single dty in this country is going to need to figure out a way to start taking care
of our seniors," Little said. "There's just a lot of issues we need to... make fair and clear."

MeanwhUe, city staff in Woodbury are recommending that city officials vote to opt out

in order to have more time to figure out what local needs are, said Jason Egerstrom,

Woodbury's spokesman.

Under the statute, cities have until Sept. 1 to opt out.

John Louiselle, co-owner ofNextDoor Housing, a New Brighton-based drop home

company that helped craft the law, said he doesn't mind if cities choose a different

direction. "What's worrisome to us is when we see cities opting out and offering no

alternative solution," he said.

Peterson said she would like to see cities try out the statute and see how it works. The

biggest challenge, she said, is that people aren't familiar with the drop home idea.

"This is new — nobody's really done this before," she said. "Let's have a conversation

with the community before we just choose to abandon the idea."

ErinAdler • 612-673-1781

Erin.Adler@startrlbune.com 612-673-1781

emma.neison@startnbune.com 612-673-4509 emmamarienelson

http://www.startribune.com/suburbs-opt-to-go-their-own-way-on-state-s-drop-home-law/38... 7/5/2016



New Brighton firm's tiny trailer homes offer aid for families in need - StarTribuae.com Page 1 of 2

EAST METRO

New Brighton company's tiny trailer
homes offer solution for families in need
New Brighton entrepreneurs helped write a bill to allow then- smaU
mobile homes into yards.

By Erin Adler (http://www.startribune.com/erln-adler/195633361/) Star Tribune I

JUNE 4, 2016 - 12;42PM

At different times, Jesse Lammi and John Louiselle have received the same bittersweet

update: Their sick relative was healthy enough to leave the hospital.

The bad news: Theu- family had to track down a safe, affordable and local place for their

stiU-fragile family member to convalesce in just a few days.

The young entrepreneurs created New Brighton-based NextDoor Housing to help

families avoid that dilemma.

In a twist on the "tiny homes" trend, their company sells and rents out 240-square-foot,

handicapped accessible trailers designed to sit temporarily in homeowners' backyards

when a family member can't quite live independently.

"Really, the goal here was to provide time and sanctuary for people in need," Lammi

said. "A spot where you can be near family but still have that privacy and

independence*"

A new bill passed weeks ago aUows parMng the S-by-30-foot structures — called Drop

Homes or granny pods — on single-family home lots for six months with a $100 permit,

unless barred by a local ordinance.

"The nexus ofNextDoor Housing really is just trying to add another option to the

current ones," Louiselle said.

Rep. Roz Peterson, R-LakenUe, and Sen. John Hoffman, DPL-Champlin, sponsored the

bill.

Lammi and LouiseUe Grafted a "relatively compUcated" biU —the Temporary Pairuly

Health Care Dwellings BiU — mostly on their own, Peterson said, an impressive feat.

Peterson was also taken with the idea of Drop Homes.

"I have a 96-year-old father and personally experience the challenges," Peterson said.

"People need to have some choices and this is just one other ... tool in the toolbox."

Lammi and Louiselle grew up playing hockey together in the northern suburbs. They

reunited after college and came up with the NextDoor Housing concept, drawing on

college majors in health care and economics.

"It really was a combination [of both of us]," Lammi said. "I kind of had modular

housmg ideas, and John brought the health care side into it."

The business began in 2014 and leapt forward when the two received a $340,000 grant

from the Minnesota Department of Human Services.

NextDoor Housing contracts with a company in north-central Minnesota to construct

the homes. Each Drop Home plugs into a 50-amp outlet and has heat, air conditioning,

heated water and a bathroom with a shower. They can be pulled with a one-ton pickup

truck, making them mobUe.

The homes cost $45,000 to $70,000 to purchase or $1,250 a month to rent through

NextDoor. Combining that rent with in-home health care would cost about $3,500 a

month, the same or less than a spot in assisted living.

"The price of nursing home care has skyrocketed in the last five years," Louiselle said. "A

lot of people need that, but there are individuals who land in nursing homes that don't

necessarily need or want to be there.

A lot of interest has come from rural Minnesota, Lamml said, where there are already a

few Drop Homes sheltering people with medical problems. So far, three have been sold

and two rented.

Since the law takes effect Sept. 1, the real kickoffwill be at the Minnesota State Fair in

August, where they'll "go full-scale launching our rental operation," Lammi said.

345033875.) pg)

(http://stmedia.startribune.com/images/ows_1465013452

Each mobile home (called a Drop Home)

features heat, air conditioning, heated water, a

bathroom with a shower and a bed and

http://www.startribune.com/tiny-trailer-homes-offer-a-solution-for-families-in-need/381847... 7/5/2016



New Brighton firm's tiny trailer homes offer aid for families in need - StarTribune.com Page 2 of 2

The goal is to sell or rent five Drop Homes by the fair's end, Lammi said.

New Brighton Mayor Val Johnson, a Lammi family friend who has advised both

partners on their business, called their brainchild "brilliant."

"When people have a good idea and they work diligently to make it happen, it>s

important to support them," Johnson said. "It's not always about experience but more

about drive."

"We're the only company around doing this," Lammi said. "We really believe it's the

wave of the future."

Erin.Adfer@startribune.com

(http;//stmedia.startribune.com/images/ows_1465013455

The small mobile homes are designed to be

used by people who are recovering from an

injury or illness or for those who may have a

http://www.startribnne.com/tiny-trailer-homes-offer-a-solution-for-families-in-need/3 81847... 7/5/2016



City of St. Charles
2017 Budget timeline promotes a timeframe to review only the Governmental Funds directly as they
relate to the certified levy. The following funds are included in the Certified Levy budget section: Administration,
Park, Recreation, Street, Library, Fire, Swimming Pool and EDA . By scheduling the Enterprise Funds

(Electric, Water, Sewer, Ambulance) budget in the future, it allows for more historical data to provide
a clearer forecast for Mike Bubany to draw from as we review CIP and rates.

Month Schedule Plans

July 19 - August 9 City administrator/accountant to meet with department heads

August 23rd Council meeting - copy of preliminary budget, CIP and
department goals to council

September 13th Council meeting - Discuss Governmental Levy Budget

September 27th Certify levy Governmental (Levy) amount at council meeting
Approve resolution for preliminary levy to Winona County

October 11, 2016 Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets

October 25, 2016 Discuss Enterprise Budget Changes, CIP (Mike Bubany)

November 9, 2016 Finalize Enterprise Budget

December 13, 2016 TNT Council meeting to allow public input
Finalize/Approve

Can utilize special meeting date of December 27, 2016 if needed


